N\iddles@cﬁjgh

Legal and Governance

moving forward

HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL

Date: Tuesday 8th March, 2022
Time: 4.00 pm
Venue: Virtual

Please note this is a virtual meeting.

The meeting will be livestreamed via
the Council’s YouTube channel at
Middlesbrough Council - YouTube

AGENDA

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of interest.
Minutes - Health Scrutiny Panel - 8 February 2022

Health Inequalities - Health Service Perspective
Representatives of the Tees Valley CCG will be in attendance
to provide information on Health Inequalities from the Health
Service perspective.

Health Inequalities - Public Health Perspective
Representatives from the Public Health team will be in
attendance to provide information about Health Inequalities
from a Public Health perspective.

Covid-19 Update

Mark Adams, Director of Public Heath (South Tees) will be in
Page 1


https://www.youtube.com/user/middlesbroughcouncil

attendance to provide an update on COVID-19 and the local
Public Health / NHS response.

7. Chair's OSB Update

8. Any other urgent items which in the opinion of the Chair, may
be considered.

Charlotte Benjamin
Director of Legal and Governance Services

Town Hall
Middlesbrough
Monday 28 February 2022

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors D Coupe (Chair), D Davison (Vice-Chair), R Arundale, A Bell, A Hellaoui,
T Mawston, D Rooney, C Mcintyre and P Storey

Assistance in accessing information

Should you have any queries on accessing the Agenda and associated information
please contact Scott Bonner, 01642 729708, scott_bonner@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 2



Agenda Item 3

Health Scrutiny Panel 08 February 2022

HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL

A meeting of the Health Scrutiny Panel was held on Tuesday 8 February 2022.

PRESENT: Councillors D Coupe (Chair), D Davison (Vice-Chair), R Arundale, C Cooke
(Substitute for A Hellaoui), T Mawston, D Rooney and P Storey
ALSO IN C Blair (Director Of Commissioning Strategy and Delivery) (TVCCG), E Cooper
ATTENDANCE: (TVCCG), K Hawkins (Director Of Commissioning Strategy and Delivery — Primary
Care), M Kesavalu (Prospect Surgery) J Henderson (Prospect Surgery) S Sabir
(Prospect Surgery)
OFFICERS: M Adams, S Bonner, C Breheny, G Nicholson and K Smith
APOLOGIES FOR Councillors A Bell, A Hellaoui and C Mclntyre
ABSENCE:
21/111 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest received at this point in the meeting.
21/112 MINUTES- HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL - 11 JANUARY 2022
The minutes of the Health Scrutiny Panel meeting held on 11t January 2022 were submitted
and approved as a correct record.
21/113 PROSPECT SURGERY - CQC INSPECTION UPDATE

The Panel was encouraged by the work being undertaken by the practice to remedy its
current rating.

The Chair welcomed representatives of the Tees Valley Clinical Commissioning Group
(TVCCG) and Prospect Surgery.

The TVCCG advised Members the update before them was being presented three months
after the CQC’s initial inspection in June 2021 and that a follow up inspection would be carried
out in three months’ time to provide a further rating. It was also noted the TVCCG was not the
regulator and that they were working with Prospect Surgery to assist in their improvement
journey.

While the practice remained in special measures all stakeholders including the Local Medical
Committee, Primary Care Network and others were working together to ensure the practice
improved on its current position.

The practice itself had worked hard to improve internal processes that would enable any
changes to be sustainable. Key staff had also been recruited, including pharmacists, to ensure
prescriptions were accurate and appropriate, especially in relation to his risk drug prescribing.
To bolster this initiative a great deal of staff development had taken place to equip staff with
the necessary skills to ensure patient safety and service quality were maintained.

Members were advised that cervical smear tests had increased from 49% at the time of the
previous inspection to 70%, which was a significant improvement. It was also found that
traditional methods of contacting patients proved to be ineffective. As such new methods of
engaging with patients were now being employed to good effect.

Improved internal processes included full staff meetings every fortnight to ensure there was a
holistic view of practice operations. All of these improvements had also led to improved patient
reviews especially in terms of prescriptions of Gabapentin and Pregabalin.

A Member queried how many patients were being prescribed those drugs. It was clarified that

while this a difficult area, a recent audit showed prescriptions for Pregabalin had decreased
from 147 in quarter one to 117 in quarter three while Gabapentin prescriptions had decreased

Page 3



21/114

08 February 2022
from 166 in quarter one to 48 in quarter three.

A Member queried if GP surgeries were regularly inspected by the CQC. It was clarified the
CQC periodically inspected GP Surgeries and that good ratings reduced inspection frequency.

A Member queried if the changes made by the practice would be beneficial to both the
practice and to patients. It was clarified the improvements made should improve the quality of
services for all.

It was also clarified that while Covid-19 had an impact on inspections this had been lessened.

Overall, the Panel were encouraged by the work undertaken by the practice and commended
everyone involved for their efforts.

The Chair thanked all attendees for their participation.
NOTED.

HEALTH INEQUALITIES - AN EDUCATIONAL PERSPECTIVE

The Chair welcomed representatives of the Council’s Achievement and Public Health Teams
to the meeting and invited them to present information about how educational outcomes could
reduce health inequalities.

Members were advised the Government’'s Levelling-Up Agenda could provide £5 million of
investment in education to areas with higher levels of deprivation, such as Middlesbrough.

The Panel was advised the Achievement Service supported 54 schools, 70 nurseries and 42
childminding services. Part of that support was to provide professional development and
ensure children and young people were provided with the best possible life chances. It was
noted there were several overlaps with the health service in this regard.

There were several initiatives that provided young people with the best possible life chances
including the Best Start Pathway. As the first 1001 days of a child’s development were seen
as crucial, Best Start was intended to support the most vulnerable families. As such, Best
Start supported young parents, via the school readiness team, to make sure their young
children were school ready. The scheme was piloted in three areas of Middlesbrough last year
and was now open to all families across the town.

Other initiatives included the Health Eating and Nutrition for the Really Young (HENRY) and
Fussy Eaters. This was an evidence based approach that aimed to support babies and young
people gain the best possible start in their lives.

Again this initiative focusses on the first 1001 days of a child’s development whereby face to
face interactions were made between practitioners and families to provide nutritional and
healthy eating programmes. During 2021 102 families completed the programmes. As with all
other initiatives of this kind, they were delivered virtually through the Covid-19 Pandemic.

To prepare children for school the Play and Learn Together initiative encouraged families to
learn and play together in order to understand how to better interact with children in order to
make them school ready. This was an eight week programme that was delivered jointly with
the health service.

During 2021 136 families engaged with the programme, with 94 reporting an increase in their
confidence to interact successfully with their children. This resulted in parents being able to
verbalise their emotions and have a greater insight into their social and emotional positions.

A recent initiative was the Support to Talk scheme which was created in response to evidence
young children’s speech and language had been adversely affected by the Covid-19
pandemic. The scheme was designed to work with families to improve this situation,
especially for those babies that had been born during the pandemic. It was noted that the
practice had been shared across Middlesbrough, Redcar and Cleveland and health and social
care agencies.

Members were also advised that an Ethnic Minority Achievement Team worked with

Page 2



21/115

08 February 2022

international new arrivals to ensure they were signposted to appropriate services so that
families became familiar with their surroundings quickly and that children of those families
were school ready as soon as possible after their arrival.

Members also received information from the Council’s Public Health team about how
improvements to educational attainment could help improve health inequalities. The Panel
heard that the first 1001 days of a child’s development were crucial. As such Public Health
were keen to intervene during this period in order to construct important building blocks for
children to be school ready, especially in areas such as language and speech.

The Panel heard babies born in Middlesbrough today had a life expectancy 3.6 years less
than the England average. Members were also made aware there were significant inequalities
in the town itself. For example, average life expectancy in northern wards was 10 years less
than those in southern wards. Members were also advised there was a wide range of
initiatives carried out by the Public Health Teams including Public Health Literacy
Programmes as well as programmes that went beyond school such as the Head Start
Programme and offering advice around Covid-19.

A Member queried if individuals identified as Neurodiverse would have access to the Best
Start pathway. It was clarified those individuals would be picked up under one of the 10
markers within that pathway.

A Member queried the details of the Boro Breastfeeding initiative and was informed it was
created to challenge social norms, especially in South Tees that had a bottle feeding culture. It
was also clarified it was in its infancy but would build on existing schemes.

A Member queried if projects begun using the Controlling Migration Fund had been able to
continue as this funding stream had stopped. It was clarified lessons from that project were
continuing to be implemented, namely though the Ethnic Minority Achievement Team.

A Member queried how many schools had engaged with the Head Start Programme. It was
clarified this information would be circulated to members. There was also a Mental Health in
Schools project called Inside-Out that ran across Middlesbrough and Redcar and Cleveland.

The Chair commented that programmes like HENRY and Fussy Eaters did not seem entirely
new but welcomed their introduction. It was clarified those programmes focussed on parenting
techniques and role modelling. It was also clarified that 102 families had completed the
HENRY programme in 2021 and that work was continuing.

The Chair also commented that the Support to Talk resources was extremely useful. It was
clarified that Support to Talk was a self-help tool that parents could use to develop
verbalisation in their children. It was recognised that due to the Covid-19 Pandemic a
significant amount of learning did not take place and this programme would help to bridge that

gap.
The Chair thanked the officers for their presentation.
ORDERED that:

1. Information relating to numbers of schools participating in Head Start be circulated
and,
2. The information presented be noted.

COVID-19 UPDATE

The Chair welcomed the Director of Public Health (South Tees) to the meeting and invited him
to provide his Covid-19 update.

The Panel was advised the latest Covid-19 statistics showed Middlesbrough ranked 90th
nationally with the Tees Valley much further down the league tables than it was previously.
The Panel appreciated, however, that rates remained high. The Panel was also informed that
test numbers were also decreasing, albeit slowly.

In terms of hospital inpatients; these remained relatively high while those in critical care were

Page 8



08 February 2022
low which was also reflected in the number of deaths across the Trust.

Vaccination take up rates in Middlesbrough remained below the English and North East
averages, but considering challenges such as deprivation in the town this was somewhat
understandable.

The Panel were also shown evidence, provided by the Intensive Care National Audit &
Research Centre (ICNARC), showing the correlation between individuals without a vaccine
being more susceptible to serious effects of COVID-19 and more likely to require hospital
treatment.

ORDERED that:

1. ICNARC research to be circulated to Members
2. The information presented by noted.

21/116 CHAIR'S OSB UPDATE

The Chair advised the Panel that at the last meeting of OSB on the 18th January 2022 the
following items were considered:

. The Chief Executive’s update;
. The Final Report of Adult Social Care and Services Scrutiny Panel into the
recruitment and retention of staff in Adult Social Care;
. The Medium Term Financial Plan/ Budget Consultation and;
. Scrutiny Chairs updates.
NOTED.
21/117 ANY OTHER URGENT ITEMS WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, MAY BE
CONSIDERED.
None.

Page 8



Agenda ltem 4

Health Inequalities — Tees Valley Overview

1 Purpose

The purpose of this briefing paper is to set out a high-level overview of our response to health
inequalities in Middlesbrough and across the wider Tees Valley. The paper will set out the
CCGs high level vision and key objectives in addressing health inequalities throughout the
coming year and outline what plans we have put in place as a result of national and regional
directives and local place based need. It is crucial that this response is a partnership approach
across all stakeholders to ensure the most effective outcomes are achieved.

2 Background

Health inequalities are defined as unfair and avoidable differences in health across the
population, and between different groups within society. Health inequalities arise because of
the conditions in which we are born, grow, live, work and age. These conditions influence our
opportunities for good health, and how we think, feel and act, and this shapes our mental
health, physical health and wellbeing.*

It has been well documented that the recent pandemic has added to increased health
inequalities across our population and focussed action on health inequalities is required to
improve the lives of those living with the worst health outcomes.

Health inequalities are usually defined within four groups and below outlines examples of the
characteristics of people/communities in each group (not exhaustive):

e Socio-economic status and deprivation: e.g. unemployed, low income, people living in
deprived areas (e.g. poor housing, poor education and/or unemployment).

e Protected characteristics: e.g. age, sex, race, sexual orientation, disability

e Vulnerable groups of society, or ‘inclusion health’ groups: e.g. vulnerable migrants; Gypsy,
Roma and Traveller communities; rough sleepers and homeless people; and sex workers

e Geography: e.g. urban, rural.

3 Tees Valley Overview

Health across the Tees Valley is generally worse than the England average; with health
inequalities between most and least deprived wards being significant. In the majority of areas,
obesity in children is worse than the England average and the rate of alcohol-specific hospital
stays among those under 18 is also worse than the national average. GCSE attainment is
lower than average, rates of breastfeeding are lower than the national average and all
localities have higher than average levels of smoking at time of delivery. In most areas, excess
weight in adults and physical activity is worse than the England average.

There appear to be more similarities than differences amongst the general population across
the five local authority areas.

Impact on mortality and reduction in prevention, detection and management of conditions

e The available information demonstrates that for nearly all locality areas, life expectancy
and healthy life expectancy is worse than the England average.

1 NHS England » Definitions for Health Inequalities (May 2021)

Page 1 of 26

Page 7


https://www.england.nhs.uk/ltphimenu/definitions-for-health-inequalities/

e Under 75 mortality rates from cancer are worse than the England average for all
localities expect Darlington, which is similar. This is the same for the under 75 mortality
rate from all CVD disease.

e The under 75 mortality rate from causes considered preventable is worse than the
England average for all locality areas

o The Tees Valleys' flu vaccination coverage rate is considered worse than the England
average

o Hartlepool, Middlesbrough and Redcar and Cleveland have more obese adults than
the England average, with Stockton and Darlington localities having a similar rate to
the rest of England.

e Smoking prevalence is higher than the England average in Hartlepool and
Middlesbrough

e The under 75 mortality rate from respiratory disease is worse than the England
average across all locality areas

e The under 75 mortality rate from liver disease is worse than the England average for
all locality areas except Redcar and Cleveland where it is similar.

Wider societal determinants that affect health

e Children in care rates are higher than the England average across all locality areas

e The employment and support allowance claimant rate is higher than the England
average across all locality areas

e The gap in the employment rate between those with a long-term health condition and
the overall employment rate is worse than the England average for all localities except
Darlington which is similar

e The % of people in employment is lower than the England average for all locality areas
expect Darlington which is similar

Diversity within local communities

Within the Tees Valley there is a spread of BAME populations within localities, with around
4.4% of the population in HaST and Darlington localities belonging to BAME communities, and
6.8% in South Tees.

Across the Tees Valley therefore there is a BAME communities average of around 5.3% of
the total population.

Deprivation

Tees Valley is the second ranked most deprived Local Enterprise Partnership (IMD 31.3% of
neighbourhoods). Middlesbrough and Hartlepool are in the top 20 local authority districts with
the highest levels of income deprivation. Middlesbrough, Hartlepool and Redcar & Cleveland
are also in the top 20 local authority districts with the highest levels of employment deprivation.

Page 2 of 26

Page 8



Middlesbrough and Hartlepool are in the top 20 local authority districts with the highest
proportion of children living in income deprived households?.

These figures are taken from the published Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) for England
2015 and figures in 2019 are largely unchanged.

Figure 1: Health in summary

are classified as
obese. The rate

of alcohol-
specific hospital
stays among

those under 18
is 75* worse
than the average
for England. This
represents 32
stays per year.
Levels of
teenage
pregnancy,
breastfeeding
initiation and
smoking at time

of children are
classified as
obese, worse
than the

average for
England. The
rate of
alcohol-
specific

hospital stays
among those
under 18 is
52*%, worse
than the
average for
England. This
represents 12

are classified as
obese. The rate

of alcohol-
specific hospital
stays among

those under 18 is
72*, worse than
the average for
England. This
represents 20
stays per year.
Levels of
teenage
pregnancy,
GCSE
attainment,
breastfeeding

are classified as
obese, worse than
the average for
England. The rate
of alcohol-specific

hospital stays
among those
under 18 is 55%,
worse than the
average for
England. This
represents 18
stays per year.

Levels of teenage
pregnancy, GCSE
attainment,
breastfeeding

Stockton-on- Darlington Redcar and Middlesbrough Hartlepool
Tees Cleveland
Overall Varied Varied Generally worse | Generally worse | Generally worse
health compared with | compared than the England | than the England | than the England
the England | with the | average. Redcar | average. average.
average. About | England and Cleveland is | Middlesbrough is | Hartlepool is one
21% (7,600) of | average. one of the 20% | one of the 20% | of the 20% most
children live in | About 20% | most  deprived | most deprived | deprived
low income | (3,900) of | districts/unitary districts/unitary districts/unitary
families. Life | children live in | authorities in | authorities in | authorities in
expectancy for | low income | England and | England and | England and
both men and | families. Life | about 24% | about 31% (8,900) | about 27%
women is lower | expectancy (5,800) of | of children live in | (4,800) of
than the England | for both men | children live in | low income | children live in
average. and women is | low income | families. Life | low income
lower than the | families. Life | expectancy for | families. Life
England expectancy for | both men and | expectancy for
average. both - men and | women is lower | both men and
women is lower | than the England | women is lower
than the England | average. than the England
average. average
Health Life expectancy | Life Life expectancy | Life expectancy is | Life expectancy
Inequalities | is 14.9 vyears | expectancy is | is 10.1 years | 12.5 years lower | is 11.7 years
lower for men | 11.7 years | lower for men | for men and 13.0 | lower for men
and 13.9 years | lower for men | and 7.0 years | years lower for | and 10.2 years
lower for women | and 8.5 years | lower for women | women in the | lower for women
in the most | lower for | in  the most | most deprived | in the  most
deprived areas | women in the | deprived areas of | areas of | deprived areas of
of Stockton-on- | most deprived | Redcar and | Middlesbrough Hartlepool than
Tees than in the | areas of | Cleveland thanin | than in the least | in the least
least deprived | Darlington the least | deprived areas. deprived areas.
areas. than in the | deprived areas.
least deprived
areas.
Child InYear6,21.1% | In Year 6, | In Year 6, 21.0% | In Year 6, 22.7% | In Year 6, 23.3%
Health (480) of children | 22.5% (277) | (307) of children | (401) of children | (260) of children

are classified as
obese, worse
than the average
for England. The
rate of alcohol-
specific hospital

stays among
those under 18 is
38*, This
represents 8
stays per year.
Levels of
teenage
pregnancy,
GCSE
attainment,

breastfeeding

2 North East IMD info.pdf (vonne.org.uk) (May 2021)

Page 9

Page 3 of 26


https://www.vonne.org.uk/sites/default/files/files/resources/North%20East%20IMD%20info.pdf

Stockton-on- Darlington Redcar and Middlesbrough Hartlepool

Tees Cleveland

of delivery are | stays per | initiation and | initiation and | initiation and
worse than the | year. Levels | smoking at time | smoking at time of | smoking at time
England of smoking at | of delivery are | delivery are worse | of delivery are
average. time of | worse than the | than the England | worse than the

harm  hospital
stays is 901%,
worse than the
average for
England.  This
represents 1,698
stays per year.
The rate of self-
harm  hospital
stays is 239%,
worse than the
average for
England.  This
represents 467
stays per year.
Rates of
sexually
transmitted
infections,
people killed and
seriously injured
on roads and TB
are better than
average. Rates
of early deaths
from
cardiovascular
diseases and
early deaths
from cancer are
worse than
average

related harm
hospital stays
is 769*, worse

than the
average for
England. This

represents
802 stays per
year. The rate
of self-harm
hospital stays
is 212*. This
represents
217 stays per
year.
Estimated
levels of adult
smoking in
routine  and

manual
occupations
are better
than the
England
average.
Rates of
people killed
and seriously
injured on
roads and TB
are better

than average.

harm hospital
stays is 768*,
worse than the
average for
England. This
represents 1,032
stays per year.
The rate of self-
harm hospital
stays is 261%,
worse than the
average for
England. This
represents 329
stays per year.
Estimated levels
of adult excess
weight are worse
than the England
average. Rates
of sexually
transmitted
infections,
people killed and
seriously injured
on roads and TB
are better than
average.

harm hospital
stays is 898*,
worse than the
average for
England. This
represents 1,159
stays per year.
The rate of self-
harm hospital
stays is 331%
worse than the
average for
England. This
represents 476
stays per vyear.
Estimated levels
of adult smoking
and physical
activity are worse
than the England
average. The rate
of hip fractures is
worse than
average. Rates of
sexually
transmitted
infections and
people killed and
seriously injured
on roads are
better than
average.

delivery are | England average. England
worse  than | average. average.
the England
average.
Adult The rate of | The rate of | The rate  of | The rate of | The rate  of
Health alcohol-related alcohol- alcohol-related alcohol-related alcohol-related

harm hospital
stays is 952%
worse than the
average for
England. This
represents 862
stays per year.
The rate of self-
harm hospital
stays is 230%,
worse than the
average for
England. This
represents 205
stays per year.
Estimated levels
of adult excess
weight, smoking
and physical
activity are worse
than the England
average. Rates
of sexually
transmitted
infections and TB
are better than
average.

Source: https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles

More information can be found in Appendix 1.

4 National and Regional Directives

A central part of the COVID recovery response is aimed at tackling health inequalities by
increasing the scale and pace of NHS action. Nationally, eight urgent actions were originally
identified and systems have since been asked to focus on five of these priority areas, distilled
from the original eight actions. These are:

e Restore NHS services inclusively

o Mitigate against digital exclusion

o Ensure datasets are complete and timely

e Accelerate preventative programmes that proactively engage those at greatest risk of poor
health outcomes

e Strengthen leadership and accountability

Page 4 of 26

Page 10


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles

Building on these focus areas, systems are also asked to overlay the 'Core20PLUS5S'
approach which helps to defines a target population cohort and identifies 5 focus clinical areas
which require improvement. Systems are therefore asked to use the Core20PLUSS5 approach
when agreeing and implementing actions that meet the 5 priority areas.

INHS
REDUCING HEALTHCARE INEQUALITIES

The Core20PLUSS approach is designed to support Integrated Care Systems to
drive targeted action in health inequalities improvement

¢ CORE20 PLUS
The most deprived 20% of ** 1CSchosen population groups
the national population as experoncng poorer-than-average
Identified by the Index of health accoss, experience andior
Muitiple Deprivation outcomes, who may not be captured

within the Core20 alane and would
benefit from a tailored healthcare
approach e.g. ndusion health groups

Target population

DISEASE 7 to allow for intervertions

wormen from BAME a cear focus on Cheosic to optenwse biood
communmes and Obstructive Puimonary pressue sod moimuse
from the mest Disease (COPDN, driving the sk of myocandial
deprved groups wp uptake of Cowd, Flu infarcson and saroke

and Preumonls

accines 1o Raue

nfectve exacerbations

and emergency hospital
admissions due 19 those

— """"’"R S e

ILLNESS (SM1) DIAGNOSIS

ersuring annual heaith T5% of cases diagnosed
chacks for 60% of atstage | or 2 by 2028
thoss Ivng with SIMI

(bringing SMI in line

As an ICS, North East North Cumbria also have a Health Inequalities Advisory Group in place,
which aims to offer a multi-agency expert resource, utilising the skills of all partners to achieve
a more systematic approach to health inequalities across the system. The aim of this group is
to build upon existing place-based working to ensure a health inequalities focus in all ICS
workstreams and decision making and to align with Marmot to build back fairer. The advisory
group focuses on:

Leadership and culture
Governance and accountability
Intelligence and insight
Capacity and capability
Resources

Research and Development
Anchor Institutions

VVVYVYVVY

Page 5 of 26

Page 11



A regional, high level action plan has been developed by the group, focussed on the 5 key
propriety areas, which is then further expanded at each place-based level to tackle health
inequalities.

4 Framework for Action

In order to ensure health inequalities are positively impacted across all services, it is
imperative that we work collaboratively as a place-based system to agree a framework for
action, focused around the 5 key priority areas and using intelligence from the Core20PLUS5
approach, plus building upon the information, support and intelligence flowing from the ICS
Advisory Group.

The framework should set out how partners will work together and utilise all available
networks, resources and governance arrangements in place to improve prevention, access to
care and wider societal determinants of health.

In response to general planning guidance and specific guidance in relation to health
inequalities including the ICS action plan, the CCG has led on the development of a series of
OGIM (objectives, goals, initiatives and measures) documents that set out a system response
to a number of key themes/areas. The aim of these high-level documents is that they are
recognised and owned by the system and all partners input into and put plans in place to
deliver action against the agreed themes/areas.

OGIM development has been focussed around areas identified through the Core20PLUS5
approach alongside local place-based need and within each OGIM, the 5 health inequality key
priority areas are a thread through all actions identified. Tees Valley OGIMs include:

Prevention (healthy lifestyles)

Cancer

Long Term Condition Management (Respiratory, CVD, Diabetes)
Vaccination programmes

Access

Mental Health

Palliative and End of Life Care

Maternity

Children and Young People

Elective Recovery

This is in addition to work led by partners that supports addressing the wider societal
determinants of health including employment, housing, air pollution and transport.

These OGIMs and the resulting actions that are implemented will be reviewing on an ongoing
basis and will be driven by relevant national, regional and local emerging guidance and local
population health management approaches.

It is important to note that at the time of writing this paper, health planning guidance has just
been released which may lead to a refresh of plans. As a result, OGIMs and associated health
inequality actions may change slightly to reflect this updated national mandate.

5 Tackling Neighbourhood Inequalities - Population Health Management (PHM)
Approaches In Primary Care

Page 6 of 26

Page 12



PHM is a critical building block for integrated care systems and enables Primary Care
Networks (PCNs) to deliver with their local partners, true personalised care. Together, the
three Ps (PHM, PCNs, Personalised Care) form a core offer for local people which ensures
care is tailored to their personal needs and delivered as close to home as possible.

PHM enables systems and local teams to understand and look for the best solutions to
people’s needs — not just medically but also socially — including the wider determinants of
people’s health.

Alongside the wider OGIMs, specific work at a Primary Care Network level is taking place,
which aligns to delivering the outcomes of the Tackling Neighbourhood Inequalities DES. The
DES tasks Primary Care Networks with specific asks around identifying a population
experiencing inequality in provision and/or outcomes and implementing, with system partners,
plans to addressing this unmet need. Plans need to deliver relevant interventions or referrals
to services that provide interventions for the selected population.

Locally, this programme is being supported by NECS, using population health management
approaches, which includes data intelligence gathering, coaching and access to best practice
evidence based interventions such as a range of anticipatory care interventions. Primary Care
Networks have also been further incentivised to engage in this programme by the CCG via
access to a development fund with the specific aim of reducing health inequalities through
understanding their population needs and implementing interventions which will help increase
population health outcomes

Although national directives have been issued to pause the majority of primary care work apart
from urgent interventions and the vaccination programme, locally PCNs are still engaged with
this programme and across the Tees Valley, are in varying stages of identification of a
population cohort and development of plans to support this cohort.

Locality/ PCN Key progress/ update
Middlesbrough PCNs January 2022- The PCNs are working in collaboration with
[Central, Greater and Central, Holgate and the Local Authority.

Holgate PCNSs]
The group have agreed that the underlying factor to most of the
inequalities in the area is Poverty and this was the area PCNs
will focus their improvement plans around.

The PCNSs have agreed they would focus their plan around Mental
Health, Alcohol and Frequent Flyers to Primary Care. This
approach to all these health inequalities will be driven by the
overarching theme of Poverty, as will any improvement plan that
is developed.

A project group has been established and the CCG and
Business Intelligence Colleagues have been invited to attend.

Darlington

December/ January 2022- A PHM Workshop was held on 17"
December with PCN and wider system partners which helped

Page 7 of 26

Page 13




the PCN identify the key demographics which could benefit from
PHM-related interventions e.g. obesity, travelling communities,
learning disability etc.

The NECS Analytics team will help to develop profiles to support
the next Darlington Workshop e.g. obesity profile and other
analytics for Darlington locality.

A system group reconvened on the 18" February to help the
PCN understand the data better and narrow the population
focus. It was agreed that the PCN will focus on loneliness,
frequent attenders to primary care and unknown to services.

Hartlepool [One Life,
Hartlepool Health,
Hartlepool Network]

January 2022- Following the PCNs agreeing that alcohol was
their chosen priority a Hartlepool workshop was held on 19th
January 2022 and helped the PCNs identify potential cohorts to
target their alcohol-related focus on PHM e.g. unplanned care,
for males aged 30-54 within most deprived decile for example.

The ICS has approached the PCN Clinical Directors to present
back at a future ICS meeting and have been highlighted at a
regional level due to the great engagement and collaborative
work being undertaken.

Stockton on Tees
[Billingham and Norton
PCN, Stockton PCN,
North Stockton PCN and
BYTES]

January 22- Sarah Bowman-Obuna [Local Authority] has
offered her teams support once PCNs have agreed on their
chosen priority and will ensure her team members are members
of the PCNs working groups.

The CCG will be working with PCNs during Feb to finalise
priorities so that interventions can be agreed.

Redcar and Cleveland
[Redcar Coastal, East
Cleveland Group and
Eston PCNs]

January 22- PCNs are continuing to agree their priority and
additional actions required. The CCG will be working with PCNs
during Feb to finalise priorities so that interventions can be
agreed.

The initial priorities identified are: Frequent flyers and healthy
weight.

These place-based programmes will be tied in to the broader OGIM initiatives to ensure no
duplication and to build upon existing/emerging work programmes so the best outcomes can

be achieved overall.

6 Tees Valley — Action on Health Inequalities

As identified, a systematic approach to tackling health inequalities has been applied across
the Tees Valley, working in collaboration as a system to aim to achieve the best outcomes for
our population.

For the purposes of this paper, health inequality-related actions contained within each OGIM
have been extracted to focus a response around this agenda. The summary below provides
an overview of Tees Valley health inequality plans and progress to date, with specific
reference to the 5 national key priority areas.

Page 8 of 26

Page 14



Priority Area

Overarching Planning Actions agreed at ICS Level

Additional place-based actions/progress

Restore NHS
services
inclusively

GT obed

Excellent examples where Trusts are starting to include the Index of Multiple Deprivation
(IMD) quintile in several key data sets and reports, including the inpatient and outpatient
waiting lists examples included within the elective recovery section. This approach needs to
be rolled out across the ICS.

As an ICS system we are supporting opportunities and frameworks using examples of best
practice to support the rapid roll out of a standardised approach (where applicable) as
services are restored. A Trust Health Inequalities toolkit has been rolled out and development
of a Primary Care toolkit is underway

Development and implementation of additional indicators to monitor inclusiveness of
restoration plans using indicators of vulnerability and or disadvantage (being developed for
monthly NHS reporting to include deprivation (patients from the 20% most deprived
neighbourhoods) and ethnicity

Sharing of good practice across the ICS and beyond — linking locally, regionally and
nationally through networks for example AHSN roundtable, ADPHs to understand promising
practice

Addressing backlog of services including CHC and ensure an increased proportion of
patients managed through advice and guidance in certain specialties

Completion of all patient ethnicity datasets to be used to inform prioritisation and planning
Continue to monitor the effectiveness of arrangements in place, specifically, the balance
between face to face and virtual appointments with a key focus on increasing appropriate
access to appointments. For example Involve North East have been commissioned to
engage with and listen to patients at a local level to understand their digital experience.
Findings from the project will be used to help inform the future development of digital services.
Through our developing NE&NC ICS Health Inequalities approach, ensure join up for NHS
restoration plans with wider NHS system and partner plans e.g. Health & Wellbeing Strategies

Across the NE&NC we have now successfully recruited 5 Consultants in Public Health who
are working into FTs with the overall aim to increase PH capacity within the NHS and
the wider system. The CPHs are supporting their respective FTs to implement approaches
to support reduction in Health Inequalities. A full evaluation of this approach has been carried
out by Newcastle University. Further recruitment of CPHSs to take place 2021/22 in remaining
Trusts.

Implement the recommendations from the NE Health Inequality Impact Assessment - to
understand the direct and non-direct health impact of COVID-19 on the population in the North
East whilst addressing wider social determinants

Diagnostic spirometry services are being restored
across primary care — mobilisation plans in place and
service went live late January 2022

Work ongoing with our local AHSN to roll out a number
of projects which support the restoration and
enhancement of local services, including improved
Atrial Fibrillation detection a targeted heart value
disease programme.

Work also ongoing to roll out the 'proactive care@home'
primary care programme which aims to improve risk
stratified access to long term condition management,
coupled with a more personalised approach to the
delivery of care

As part of Tees Valley CCG's post COVID work, a
survey has been undertaken with the public to
understand their experiences of receiving support for
ongoing symptom management. The results of this
survey will help the CCG/LA in commissioning the
appropriate support. Further analysis is being
undertaken to better understand inequalities in this
patient group to enable more targeted support in the
future.

Page 9 of 26



9T abed

Development of a NE&NC ICS Health Inequality Advisory Board to provide expertise to
support to the ICS in the development of their approaches (developed and in place)
NECs are implementing routine monitoring of recovery data (referrals and activity) to
include IMD decile. This will help inform recovery in relation to health inequalities
Northern and Yorkshire Region mapping of elective care and health inequalities will be
shared to inform future approaches
Support the ICS to roll out waiting list analysis through a Health Inequalities lens to
support the Elective Recovery programme.
To build on work underway to explore how health literacy has an impact on access and
knowledge within our population
Continue to work with all relevant parts of the system to ensure ethnicity data is recorded
and accurate
Self-assessment tool is being developed to enable systems to assess where they are
against strategic and operational delivery plans and collectively agree and commit to key local
priorities regarding health and well being
Ensure the restoration of services across the ICS takes account of the NE&NC Digital
Inclusion Plan and Strategy.
The North East and North Cumbria Integrated Care System (ICS) is currently working together
across Commissioners and Acute Providers to support the recovery of Elective services. In
the main this is to target the delivery of elective activity in excess of historic trends to big
significant inroads against the well-publicised waiting lists that have grown through the covid-
19 pandemic. This is a developing piece of work; the following confirms the steps taken to
date and the future planned steps:
Actions completed
= A Project Management Office has been established
= Delivery tool and meeting schedule in place to monitor progress
=  Weekly Business Intelligence reports to track progress of waiting lists
= Regular dialogue to understand NHS and Independent Sector hospital capacity
= Supporting the proactive of managements of patients waiting excessively with the
potential of offering choice of alternative provider
Future plans
= Development of transformation programme to focus on making changes to deliver
sustainable solutions — e.g. Outpatient transformation, MSK and Ophthalmology
pathway redesign and the development of options for Elective Hubs

Page 10 of 26



Mitigate
against digital
exclusion

/T obed

Ensure
datasets are
complete and
timely

Our NE&NC ICS digital inclusion plan is now in place alongside a roadmap for delivery of the NENC
ICS Digital Strategy 2020-24. A key focus for the ICS as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, is that
it has become more apparent that there is a growing need and dependency on digital systems and
services, however, not all people have the ability, capability or willingness to interact digitally.

Collation of the evaluation to gain feedback from staff and patients about the significant
shift to digital pathways of care - ensure no detrimental impact on health inequalities and,
where appropriate put mitigating action in place.

Acceleration of the Axiom / Single Version of the Truth (SVoT) across the whole NENC
ICS footprint to support direct patient care, improve outcomes and target the reduction in
health inequalities.

The development of the Trusted Research Environment (TRE) strategy and implementation
plan.

Expansion to all PCNs in one area to National Digital Accelerator site

Plans for delivering outstanding commitments

In one Trust the equity audit carried out for outpatients identified higher DNA rates by
deprivation, gender, age and learning disabilities. Analysis of virtual consultations identified
the need to ensure recording of the outcome of the consultations to enable an assessment of
equity across digital consultations. Understand how we roll this out across the ICS.

Work is underway to tackle digital exclusion through working with other partners to increase
access through a number of other services and community assets.

Development of a Hospital Healthpathways system to be implemented, expanding on the
Community Healthpathways to provide seamless pathways of care that can be adopted
across partners and services to ensure we are provide quality, consistent care for all.

ICS digital inclusion plan and strategy to support local digital inclusion strategies.
Working on alignment and standardisation of partners digital strategies including the CCG,
Local Authority, Healthwatch, VONNE and Citizens Advice Bureau so that all relevant
partners have same outcomes.

Implement outputs from mHabitat work - understand needs and priorities and co-design
enhancements which help to build equity and inclusion.

Recently re-procured e-consultation software across
primary care to continue to offer access to care via a
range of access points

Continued review and roll out of alternative access for
patients who can engage in a digital solution across
local pathways, such as BP Monitoring, rehab
programmes etc

Ensure personalised care approaches are instigated
across all pathways and focussed on in any pathway
review — to ensure that a patient centred, patient
activated approach is offered to health care

Page 11 of 26



gT obed

Accelerate
preventative
programmes
which

e Improving the recording of ethnicity within general practice is a priority as we know that in
some areas RAIDR data identifies that ethnicity unknown or unspecified is as high as
approximately 40%.

e We recognise the need to work with practices to improve the quality and level of
coding in order to be able to better identify those adults who will be eligible for flu vaccination
and the groups who are also typically likely to be at risk of COVID-19.

¢ Availability of regional maternity dataset including intelligence relating to BAME and other
vulnerable groups

e Dashboards to support programmes of work in development such as Alcohol,
Tobacco, Maternity and Primary care LD dashboard highlighting health inequalities. Links
across dashboards to ensure consistent data sources are used. Dashboards to include
measures to monitor access, experience and outcomes where possible.

e An item will be included in provider Data Quality improvement plans within schedule 6 of
the standard contract. DQIP will be jointly developed and managed through recovery
meetings.

e To work both with NECS and with system partners to ensure datasets and analytics
tools are suitable for work on tackling health inequalities, for example to include
postcodes, ethnicity and deprivation data; and to link more widely with partner datasets, e.g.
County/District Councils.

e Ensure datasets are complete and timely to support development of Axiom /Single Version of
the Truth; to inform prioritisation and planning across the ICS system.

Work with PCNs to improve ethnicity coding

Working to increase LD registers through QOF and IIF

Plan to address interface between maternity information system and PAS

LD dashboard scope agreed and under development

As part of each organisational arrangements and the PHM approach work is underway

to ensure the data bases are complete and timely.

e Plans are in place for greater integration of datasets across primary, secondary, council and
other sectors — Axiom / Single Version of the Truth

e Avreview of the current data in CHESS to access the extent of any gaps in the submitted

data. Re-establish the data flows and ensure that ethnicity is included in new entries and

retrospectively.

The developing NE&NC ICS approach to Health Inequalities and Population Health Management will
ensure the acceleration of preventative programmes at ‘place’ (CCG/LA) are complimented by ICS
approaches and support. The developing PHM programme will be flexible to support all levels within
our system — ICS, ICP, Place and PCN as examples. We will specifically support the segmentation

Improving ethnicity coding, LD registers and identifying
patients with an SMI is a requirement of the PCN DES
from October 2021. A PCN self-assessment completed
by all PCNs has confirmed their intention to meet the
DES requirements to ensure the recording of the
ethnicity of all patients registered with the PCN (or have
recorded that the patient has chosen not to provide their
ethnicity)

Page 12 of 26



proactively of populations to identify those at greatest risk of poor health outcomes and work with the relevant
engage those partners to identify evidence based interventions to proactively engage and support individuals.

at greatest risk . L
of poor health Covid-19 Vaccination programme:

outcomes e Ensure comprehensive information is used to analyse the effectiveness of the vaccination
programme —Across the ICS and in each LA area, we have established a Health Equity
vaccination group to ensure collective action to proactively reach and support communities
where vaccine uptake is low

MH, LD and Autism:
e SMI Health checks delivery — plans are being drawn up to improve uptake of SMI health Weekly data is shared through Bl on the uptake of the

checks across the ICS which are not at the 60% standard vaccine in pregnant women. A targeted approach will
e Toregionally achieve target for those with a learning disability having a health check be rolled out with LAs/PHs. This will be targeted at low
uptake localities but will also have a focus on the BAME

community.

Q2 data for physical health checks for SMI patients was
published in November. Tees Valley CCG is the 231
Highest achieving CCG, nationally, out-turning at
37.55% in Q2. This exceeds the North East and
Yorkshire region's achievement of 37.31%. The North
East and Yorkshire region remains the highest
achieving region nationally; national achievement
currently stands at 29.98%. An ICS recovery planning
template has been developed which is in the process of
being scrutinised and completed. Outreach monies for
increasing the uptake of physical health checks have
been invested with Middlesbrough and Stockton Mind
who are working with PCNs to identify and share
examples of good practice to increase uptake.

6T obed

Data for LD AHC at 31t Oct was 33% for across the
Tees Valley. There is significant variation across
practices from 0%-77% completion of checks. The CCG
are supporting practices by

targeting support to lower performing practices, led by
CCG LD Clinical Lead, in collaboration with TEWV. This
is around quality of the check, not just completion.

Page 13 of 26



0z abed

Cancer:

Further actions included within the more detailed cancer section of the plan

Ongoing work with GPs and the local population to increase the number of people coming

forward and being referred with suspected cancer, with a particular focus on

under-

represented groups for example we are developing a health inequalities programme for the

uptake of our cancer screening programmes.

Maternity:
To regionally achieve continuity of carer target for pregnant women, with a particular

focus on BAME and vulnerable women being prioritised

There has been additional recurrent investment into
TEWYV to expand the LD physical health team this year,
which will increase capacity to support patients to
access AHC and support primary care to offer
reasonable adjustments.

The Tees Valley was successful in its application to be
a pilot site for the Targeted Lung Health Check
programme. The Targeted Lung Health Checks
programme is a new and ground-breaking flagship
programme of work in England which will contribute to
the ambition of the NHS Long Term Plan to improve
early diagnosis and survival for those diagnosed with
cancer.

The programme targets those most at risk of lung
cancer, people aged between 55 — 74 years and 364
days, who have ever smoked and invites them to a free
lung check, over a period of two years. Following the
lung health check those assessed as high risk will be
offered a low dose CT scan. It is anticipated that this
programme will support the diagnosis of lung cancers
at an earlier stage, allowing earlier and curative
treatment to be offered, which will save lives. It is
expected that this programme will commence early in
2022/23.

The Local Maternity and Neonatal System will work
across the ICS footprint to gain a greater understanding
of the BAME population, resulting in the development of
individual Trust maternity CoC action plans in order to

Page 14 of 26



T¢ obed

LTC management:

Increase the number of Social Prescribing Link workers, care co-ordinators and health &
wellbeing coaches

Service improvement - rapid diagnostics pathways rollout e.g. gynae, joint Gl, vague
symptoms, FIT testing; Smear testing catch up

Lung Health checks - Roll out of Lung Health Checks: mobile scanning, with vans sited in
some of our most deprived communities to increase uptake in these communities.

Making Every Contact Count (MECC) — continued roll out of MECC and expansion to
MECC for mental health.

Smoke Free NHS/Treating Tobacco Dependency - reduce smoking by 5% to tackle
inequalities Support regional delivery of Don’t wait campaign, systematic roll out of acute
tobacco dependency programme to add value to existing community based smoking
cessation services and further work to improve support in primary care

Alcohol Link with MH ICS workstream to improve pathways for people with dual diagnosis
and ensure ACTs have clear pathways in and out of LA commissioned community services
Healthy Weight — ICS Prevention and Population Health Board to develop a regional
approach to compliment work already developed at an ICP and place level on a whole
systems approach

Addressing antimicrobial resistance and the ambitions outlined in the AMR 5 year plan have
been a continual focus of CCGs and their system partners since publication of the plan in
2019 and early adoption of the National AMR strategy in 2013.

improve outcomes. Vulnerable women are also being
prioritised as a cohort that would benefit from CoC

The number of link workers continue to increase across
PCNs with 43 WTE in post as at October 21. A self
assessment of PCN link workers was undertaken
before Christmas to identify areas of opportunity and
gather additional intel regarding the patients they
support and are seeking to work within the future, and
the support they may require from the CCG to progress.

CCG supporting Specialist Stop Smoking Service in
Stockton with developing a pathway to send automated
text messages from primary care systems to registered
smokers to increase uptake of specialist services.

Rolled out a comprehensive training programme,
supported by NHSE and funded via personalised care
monies to increase access to MECC, health coaching
training etc during 21/22. Further programme to also be
rolled out in 22/23.

'You've got this' programme and Active Hospital
programme locally supported by the CCG

The CCG are involved in supporting the development of
Alcohol Care Teams in each FT and ensuring links to
community service provision.

Local GP practices have signed up to the weight
management DES. Developed comms material to
support signposting and referral into relevant weight
management services. Continued roll out of the

Page 15 of 26



2¢ obed

National Diabetes Prevention Programme. Expecting to
roll out low calorie diet programme during early 22/23

Hypertension Detection and Optimisation Programme —
Audit, Data analysis, and education programme to be
rolled out across Primary Care. Local variations of the
programme will be designed and implemented to build
on progress throughout 2021/22

Comprehensive review of Cardiac Rehabilitation
services will be undertaken with the aim of increasing
referral and uptake of cardiac rehabilitation during
22/23.

Work closely with Primary Care Networks to support
implementation of the new DES for CVD in 22/23, plus
support to identify CVD champions at a PCN level and
utilisation of the CVDPREVENT programmes

Implemented increased access to flash glucose
monitoring

Review and re-design, where appropriate, community
diabetes teams to enhance structured education and
self-management.

Using Treatment and Care Transformation funding from
NHSE, implement MDFTs in South Tees and HAST
localities whilst continuing to provide a comprehensive
diabetes inpatient specialist nurse service.

Undertake joint piece of work with County Durham CCG
in a NDA QI project looking at cardiovascular disease
and diabetes focussing on UCAR testing and outcomes.

The CCG has developed a close working relationship
with the ICS population management team. This builds
on the work PCNs undertook in 20/21 to identify
population priorities. There have been a series of

Page 16 of 26



ez abed

Primary Care:

PHM programme for PCNs to support identification of population requiring targeted support
Implement NE&NC Deep End network priority actions — utilise the information and
intelligence gathered from the 34 Deep End Practices to ensure those areas which will impact
positively on delivery of services and ultimately outcomes for their population are supported
and implemented

Adopting an ICS approach

To review and implement the recommendations arising from the NE COVID Health
Inequalities Impact Assessment

Working with public health colleagues to develop an ICS strategic approach to tackle
key public health issues impacting on health inequalities that can be best delivered at scale —
including obesity, smoking, alcohol, physical activity, CVD, mental health and wellbeing
Development and co-production of practical health inequalities tools for organisations to
ensure they mitigate health inequalities in recovery.

Scope and create a regional healthy weight programme — linking programmes across
Health and Public Health including the National Diabetes Prevention Programme for example
A North East and North Cumbria ICS Personalised Care Programme training offer. This
is being developed with a view to upskilling and supporting the expansion of the health, care
and VCSE sector workforce during 2021

Roll out of Alcohol Care Teams under a regional umbrella, with development of a bid to
ensure access across a regional footprint

Utilise the Better Health at Work Award programme and other business networks to share
learning and good practice across sectors in relation to supporting and promoting staff health
and wellbeing.

Plans to risk stratify and targeting patients who have not received education or have had
limited contact during the pandemic

Healthy Weight —Local place based multi agency groups are being established and will
consider early age obesity issues and obesity linked to key factors such as BAME diabetic
activity.

locality and ICP meetings during 21/22 to ensure the
ICS team supports PCNs to identify priorities and
populations to tackle health inequalities. Alongside the
DES, the CCG has been able to incentivise this work
and funds have been set aside to support a number of
projects at PCNs level to tackle the priorities highlighted
via this PHM work. The PHM approach is being rolled
out with PCNs, with wider system support and
involvement from DPHs. Plans and priorities across all
locality areas currently being finalised.

Supported and encouraged the rollout of the health
inequalities toolkit across provider organisations.
Identified CCG would be willing to roll out/trial a PCN
version once available

NDPP already rolled out across the CCG with

expansion plans agreed such as additional digital
options

Page 17 of 26



vz abed

Utilising the learning across the ICS for example one Local Authority is developing a
transport vision for the city so that as a place the wellbeing and health of future generations
is not compromised

Roll out a PHM approach which supports systems at all levels to identify priority areas and
implement appropriate interventions

MH, LD and Autism:

Learning Disabilities: multi-agency, multi-professional Learning Disabilities Health Group
been established which has developed a Learning Disabilities Action Plan and includes
measures to increase uptake of screening and health checks as well as identifying
improvements in community and hospital based pathways for people with learning disabilities
and/or autism.

NE & NC ICS LD programme has recently reframed priorities and is building these using
an inequalities lens, primarily focusing on accurate business intelligence.

Reframed regional mental health ICS work stream — reducing the life impact of mental
illness and learning disability

Maternity:

3 regional LMS groups are co-ordinating achievement of continuity of carer for
pregnant women, strong links with public health prevention in maternity services approach
for example, which includes smoking in pregnancy, maternal healthy weight and maternal
mental health

The 3regional LMNS's have merged into 1 across North
East and Cumbria (NENC) and deliverables including
key priorites have been agreed. Governance
arrangements for the one LMNS taking on greater
responsibility of maternity services are still to be agreed.
Representation from the TVCCG Director of
Commissioning, Strategy and Delivery for Children,
Young people and Maternity, sits on the Board.

Through the creation of the ICS Public Health
Prevention in Maternity group (PHPIM), Key
Deliverables have been agreed which will link to CoC
plans and include reducing SATOD, improvement of pre
conceptive advice on tobacco dependency; alcohol use,
positive mental health, postnatal contraception, nutrition
and physical activity

Page 18 of 26



Gz abed

Strengthen
leadership and
accountability

LTC management:

Development of frailty services to reduce pressure on hospitals

Development of community based services to support individuals in their own home for
example roll out of pulse oximetry and blood pressure monitors so patients care can be
managed at home

Effective delivery of the AMR agenda is informed by the North East and North Cumbria
(NE&NC) AMR and HCAI Improvement Board of which CCGs are an active member. The
Board is chaired by the SRO for Infection Prevention and Control across NE&NC. This
includes developing a more robust overarching AMR / HCAI strategy for NE&NC and
engaging with the Academic Health Sciences Network to support unmet needs and innovation
influencing future evaluation and audit. The Board aims to facilitate the harmonisation of local
AMR / HCAI plans and delivery frameworks to ensure coordination of efforts by primary,
secondary and social care. It will also deliver a standard quality assurance framework, based
on the Health and Social Care Act 2008 Code of Practice and the National Institute for Health
and Care Excellence Antimicrobial Stewardship: systems and processes for effective
antimicrobial medicine use - Baseline Assessment Tool, across all health and social care
organisations.

The Board has a workstream that specifically targets antimicrobial resistance and has been
working (although delayed by the pandemic) on mapping prescribing data across NE&NC,
developing a measure for good prescribing, exploring Nursing Stewardship and developing a
coordinated PCR testing approach across the patch.

Primary Care:

Utilising intelligence and information to ensure a targeted approach to flu and vaccination
programmes

Further support and share the learning from the Deep End Network and understand
implications of rural deprivation against urban deprivation

There are high levels of commitment from ICS leadership to adopting and further developing a
NE&NC ICS health inequalities approach underpinned by a Population Health Management
methodology. Development of a Health Inequalities advisory group to support the ICS has been
endorsed. This multi-professional group includes the NHS, LAs, PHE, Applied Research
Collaborative and the Voluntary sector. The Chair is a Chief Executive of NT&H FT. There is also
the development of a Health Inequalities network to support leads across all NHS organisations and

we are keen to expand this to include Chairs of Health & wellbeing Boards.

This will ensure

Acute Frailty Teams in place in all Acute South ICP
Hospitals South Tees Foundation NHS Foundation
Trust, North Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and
County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust

Implemented comprehensive pulse oximetry@home
model across all locality areas, supported by a virtual
ward discharge approach at STHFT and CDDFT.
Secured access to BP devices to roll out across primary
care in early 22/23 to increase monitoring.

Developed a broader @home approach, currently
working with NHSE as a wave 2 site to roll out the
proactive care@home programme across primary care,
plus scoping a more co-ordinated community approach
to @home models, inclusive of PR@Home and
HF@Home roll out. Currently scoping plans to pilot
Acute Respiratory Infection@Home also

As per above, PHM approach being rolled out across all
PCNs with targeted plans being developed that learn
from the deep end work

Page 19 of 26



9z abed

appropriate governance and accountability in place and links to well-led framework and place based
working.

Ensure all PCNs identify a named health inequality lead.

Organisations will be developing and publishing their action plans showing how over
the next five years their board (and non execs) and senior staffing will, in percentage terms
at least, match the overall BAME composition of their overall workforce, or their local
community, whichever is the higher.

Roll out of HI Toolkit across the NHS

NE&NC Health Inequalities Network being established to bring together and to support
named HI leads

NE&NC Health Inequalities advisory group to be established

Under the direction of a NE&NC ICS Health Inequalities SRO develop a Regional approach
to ensure we use the appropriate data, evidence and guidance in the ICS developments
and that we develop a HlI strategic plan

Ensure links are made between locally developed tools and approaches to support and
nationally developed tools and approaches such as Well Led Framework

Use opportunities within NHS planning guidance to continually engage across the system

Link with the NE&NC ICS Prevention and Population Health Board and NE Health
Inequalities Impact Assessment Group to develop resources, interactive toolkits, guides
and examples of the practical actions to be taken to tackle health inequalities

Work with Local Authorities, in particular the Directors of Public Health, to further build
on and align with existing leadership arrangements at a place based level via the Health &
Wellbeing Boards.

Build on existing networks to share practice and identify gaps in evidence in order to take
further action to reduce health inequalities

Active participation in a national HEP leadership programme

Locally, each area has a named health inequality lead

Page 20 of 26



/¢ abed

Appendix 1: Fingertips data sources

Better95%  Similar Notcompared ~ Quinties:  Best | | worst |

Not applicable
2 E
> =
5 g = 2 8
$ £ £ 2 2 £ & 2 &
@ o = = ) = ;
- £ _ 3 = & 3 = & = =
7] = < = ° = 2 = = = £ : =
- = [=] -] @ s = = = E " = c =
£ w 2 = = e £ F = s - = s z
= = 5 = [ 2 = S = = 5 = = 2z
: 24> P E 2 F £ ¥ 2B E E E 3 ¥ =2 s
Indicator Period o = 3 = I - = = = - = I & I
Children and young people
y 2017 - .
Infant mortality rate <\J L,> 39 34 3.2 T 4.0 30 32 39 35 32 34 26 36 30

Older people
Life expectancy at 65 (Male)
Life expectancy at 65 (Female)

Healthy life expectancy at 65 (Male)

Healthy life expectancy at 65
(Female)

Whole population
Life expectancy at birth (Male)

Life expectancy at birth (Female)

Healthy life expectancy at birth
(Male)

Healthy life expectancy at birth
(Female)

Inequality in life expectancy at birth 201? T gp 94 122 107 | 131 "7

(Male) 19

Inequallt.}r in life expectancy at birth 2017 - 4p 76 _ 133
(Female) 19

Page 21 of 26



gz abed

R E worse 95% Similar || Higher  Not compared

Quintiles: -- High Mot applicable

a =
5 =
g i - 2 g
— =
o £ t 2 = E 5 = 8
- = = = o = = w = =
- 5 £ ® 5 2 @ : 2 E & = =
= = =] s 3 o = = = £ = = H =
s 4 a2 2 = s 8 2 E s = =2 B
= = = = [ ] = ] = = = = E 2
. . ap 2 Tt ] = < = - g T Tt - ] 2 £
Indicator Period = = 38 S 3 = = 2 = = = 5 & a
Children and young people
Low birth weight of term babies 2019 <[ 290 31 327 256 311 392 319 264 250 211 322 308 355

Y

Smoking status at time of delivery  2019/20 <[ 10. Emm 128 QRN 138 | 1 139 | 165 | 183
Breastfeeding prevalence at 6-8 2019/20 4 480° * 50.9* E * *
weeks after birth - current method

Proportion of infants receving a8 1050 4 251+ [046% (051 @630 |55 067 864* 952 866 041 891 853 0966
to 8 week review

Population vaccination coverage -

MMR for one dose (2 years old) 201920 <[> 906 951 968 943 942 0927 913 938 969 940 0938 067 047 976
90% 10 95%  295%

Percentage of 3 year olds with

experience of visually obvious 2018/19 [ 23.4 [233 [268 223
dental decay

203 280 221 195 pEr&d

Working age adults

E:nncc:rrscreemng coverage -breast .00 g 7417 |63 779|166 | 726 741 6 785 758 766 754 769

Cancer screening coverage -

cervical cancer (aged 25 to 49 2020 e 702 [T48% ¥69 ¥T3 FAN N 67.3 | 65.0 9 784 T75 772 759 769
years old)

Cancer screening coverage -

cervical cancer (aged 50 to 64 2020 <[> 761 765 774 780 761 ReEYWEEN 757 762 736 763 760 QAW 775
years old)

Cancer screening coverage - bowel .o, g 635 [85.4% 660 (657 | 66 EE 638 654 696 642 634 645
cancer

Hypertension: QOF prevalence (@l ,,1000 gp 141 160 170 162 16. 17.2“ 6 179 173 158 153 174
ages)

Older people

Population vaccination coverage -
Flu (aged 65+) 2019/20 4 > A 3 . - 25 | 725 e B 5 0 | 746 | 735 | 73.0
=75%
Population vaccination coverage -
Shingles vaccination coverage (70 2017118 4> 0D . ; i ; 11 363 | ;39| 22 1 sa0 OIS
rears old) fo
m 50% 10 60% | 260% Page 22 of 26

Abdominal Aortic Aneurysm 2019/20 4[p 76.1* (183 [804 796 753 |80  78.1 759 788 806 772 805 799
Screening - Coverage

Rate of newly diagnosed dementia
registrations (Experimental)
Dementia: Recorded prevalence

fmmem 5 yvimmre =Amel svrer

jry
.

118 ikl 131 132 130 M9 138 120 108 105 122 137 107

4 308 469

2018119 4B 11

2020 <[> 397 400 388 426 441 440 457 447 407 [EELH 4

=



62 abed

Compared with England wss [ 'gsiierass Similar Not compared

Recent frends: — Could notbe i Mo significant t Increasing & 4 Increasing & [ Decreasing & ) Decreasing &
calculated change gefting worse gefting better getting worse getting better

C16 - Percentage of adults (aged 18+) classified as overweight or obese 2019/20

Propartion - %

Recent

Area Trend Count Value
England - - 62.8
County and UA - - -
Hartlepool - - 72.0 [
Redcar and Cleveland - - 72.9 I
Middlesbrough - - 71.7 I
Stockton-on-Tees - - 67.0 =
Darlington - - 63.8 —

Compared with England wes [ Bsfierass Similar Not compared

Recent trends: — Could notbe = Mo significant ‘ Increasing & 4 Increasing & ' Decreasing & ) Decreasing &
calculated change gefting worse getting better getting worse getting better

95%
Lower CI

62.6

68.7
68.7
67.4
625
591

95%
Upper Cl
63.0

e
770
761
75
58.4

EO03 - Under 75 mortality rate from causes considered preventable (2019 definition) 2017-19 Directly standardised rate - per 100,000

Area R'ri::t Count Value ch:m u::;f cl
England - 207,045 142.2 141.6 142.9
County and UA - - - - -
Migdlesbrough - 830 245.0 228.5 262.3
Hartlepool - 522 205.3 | 188.0 223.8
Redcar and Cleveland - 773 192 o [ - 1794 207 1
Stockton-on-Tees - 943 179.5 S 166.2 191.3
Darlington - 502 169.1 | S 154.6 184.6
Compared with England ses [TBeiisress Similar Not compared
Recent trends: = Could noi be s Mo significant t Increasing & £ Increasing & . D & ) Decreasing &

calculated change getting worse getting better getting worse getting better

C18 - SmokKing Prevalence in adults (18+) - current smokers (APS) zo19 Proportion - %

Area R;:ﬁ:t Count Value Lo:vs:: cl Ups::f cl
England - 6,144,703 13.9 H 136 14.1
County and UA - - - - -
Hartlepool - 14,180 19.3 . — 16.6 22.0
Middlesbrough - 18,578 17.2 . — 14.8 19.8
Redcar and Cleveland - 16,942 15.5 || 1341 17.8
Darlington - 11,652 13.7 — 14 16.0
Stockton-on-Tees - 20,294 13.2 — 109 156

Page 23 of 26



0€ abed

Compared with England sss ["Bsfierass Similar Not compared

Recent irends: — Could notbe s No significant ‘ Increasing & 4 Increasing & ‘ D & § Decreasing &
calculated change getiing worse getiing better getting worse getting better

EO4a - Under 75 mortality rate from all cardiovascular diseases 2017-19

Directly standardised rate - per 100,000

Area R.;:ﬁ:‘ count Value ch:f: o

England - 102,225 70.4 70.0
County and UA - - - -

Middlesbrough - 342 100.5 [N — 904
Hartlepool - 253 29.1 [ — 87.2
Redcar and Cleveland - 362 s3.0 IS — 79.1
Darlington - 223 743 64.8
Stockton-on-Tees - 385 73.1 66.0

Compared with England sss [5giisrass Similar Not compared

Recent trends: — Could notbe b Nosignificant 4 Increasing & 4 Increasing & .. Decreasing &  J§ Decreasing &
calculated change gefting worse getting better getting worse getting better

E05a - Under 75 mortality rate from cancer 2017-19

95%

Upper CI

Directly standardised rate - per 100,000

Area R.;::zt Count Value Laf::’m

England - 187,314 129.2 128.6
County and UA - - - -

Middlesbrough - 590 1751 IS 161.2
Hartlepool - 411 160.1 | 144.9
Redcar and Cleveland - 629 150.5 S 139.2
Stockton-on-Tees - 773 1465 | 136.6
Darlington - 413 1374 124.5

95%

Upper CI

129.8

189.9
176.4
163.1
157.5
151.4

70.9

1121
12.2
976
a84.7
80.6

Page 24 of 26



T¢ obed

Compared with England sss [TBgiiies% Similar Not compared

Recentfrends: — Couldnotbe  w Mosignificant 4 Increasing & 4 Increasing & ) Decreasing &  §} Decreasing &
calculated change getling worse getfing better getting worse getting better

EO7a - Under 75 mortality rate from respiratory disease 2017-19

Directly standardised rate - per 100,000

Area R.;:ﬁ:‘ Count Value ch;fm

England - 49,555 342 329
County and UA - - - -

Middlesbrough - 233 so.2 I — 60.7
Hartiepool - 126 ey 0000 o 41.1
Redcar and Cleveland - 207 ey 00 o 426
Darlington - 143 47.: IS 39.9
Stockion-on-Tees - 220 4z.0 IS 366

Compared with England s=ss |[T&giicisss Similar Hot compared

Recenttrends: — Could notbe i No significant ' & 4 Increasing & l D & § Decreasing &
calculated change gefting worse getting betier getling worse getting better

E06a - Under 75 mortality rate from liver disease 2017-19

95%
Upper CI
345

78.8
58.8
56.2
85.7
479

Directly standardised rate - per 100,000

Recent
Area Trend Count Value

England - 26,857 185
County and UA - - -

Middlesbrough - 99 20.0 I

95%
Lower Cl
18.3

236

Hartepool = 7 26 > 23

Stockton-on-Tees - 141 26.9 [ ——
Dariington - 76 261 [ —

Redcar and Cleveland - 85 21.8

227
205
17.3

95%
Upper CI
187

303
359
318
326
270

Page 25 of 26



2 abed

Better 95%  Similar Not compared Quintiles: -- High

Not applicable

Newcastle upon Tyne
Northumberland
Redcar and Cleveland
Stockton-on-Tees

c
2
™
]
2
-
]
"
w
=
t
S
=

County Durham
Darlington
Gateshead
Hartlepool
Middlesbrough
North Tyneside
South Tyneside
Sunderland

-
£
=
b
Indicator Period L g

Children and young people

e DDCEEE - - DEDD
o

Free school meals: % uptake 2018 dp 135 181 | 165 258 | 242 | 255 [RECMREEN 17.9 | 192

among all pupils

Child development: percentage of
children achieving a good level of  2019/20 <[> 833 [8f4 898 939 856 WirRN 894 857  &7& 912 530 * 898 832
development at 2-2%% years

School readiness: percentage of

children achieving a good levelof oo 4p T8 118 118 77 134
development at the end of

Reception

Pupils with special educational

needs (SEN): % of school pupils 2018 «l» 144
with special educational needs

16-17 year olds not in education,

employment or training (NEET)or 2019 <[ 55 48 42 52 L P 38 47
whose activity is not known

Chilaren killed and seriously injured 2017- 4 45, IPERMIPTIN 208 208 264 170 230 LR
(KSI) on England's roads 19

Working age adults

Percentage of people aged 16-641n 1050 g 752 RIRNIRERY 729 s?u 79.1 66.1 ?2 ?0_3
employment

Gap in the employment rate
between those with a long-term . .
120 [ 106 JREFN 129 127
health condition and the overall 2019120 4B
employment rate

Employment and Support

"IN 74| 78| 65 | 70
Allowance claimants 2018 4b ..-.

Whole population

720 748 T11 733 TF38 726

HH

138 142

Social Isolation: percentage of adult
social care users who have as

- 2019/20 <[> 459 499 | 511 468 | 523 | 536 470 465 473 |497 495 479 487 | 551
much social contact as they would

Page 26 of 26



	Agenda
	3 Minutes - Health Scrutiny Panel - 8 February 2022
	Minutes

	4 Health Inequalities - Health Service Perspective

